
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

August 20, 2014 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 12
Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Memorandum of
Understanding with the Kerman Public Safety Employees
Association (KPSEA)

Staff Report - KPSEA MOU - September 2014 35
Application for CDBG Funds for Fiscal Year 2015/2016

Staff Report - FY 15-16 CDBG Application 39

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, September 03, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Ivette Rodriquez with Mid Valley Disposal will present 1st Quarter Recycling Updates (MR) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: August 20, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: August 03, 2014 - August 16, 2014: $118,896.37: Overtime: $6,240.14; 
Standby: $1,176.32; Comp Time Earned: 5.25 hours 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

 1. Warrant No's. 20907-21488: $362,729.42 

 2. Excepting: Kerman Newspapers #21290 - $50.00 
  Valley Food Center #21293-$25.95; #21353-$107.28; #21394-$19.60;  
  #21445 - $92.59 
 3. Electronic Bank Transfers: $123,274.43 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding 
with the Kerman Public Safety Employees Association (KPSEA) (LP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving an amendment to 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Kerman Public Safety Employees Association 
and authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - KPSEA MOU - September 2014 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None

3



 
4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

A. SUBJECT: Application for CDBG Funds for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council takes the following action by one motion: 
 
 1. Approve the submittal of an application for Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) funds for FY 2015/16 for the installation of a pre-fabricated restroom 
building at Soroptimist Park; and 

 

 2. Approve an amendment to the City’s FY 2014/15 General Fund Budget to include 
playground equipment at B Street Neighborhood Park in-lieu of the Soroptimist 
Park restroom building. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - FY 15-16 CDBG Application 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Update on the Fiscal Year 2014/15 CDBG Funding for Katey's Kids Park (PG) 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Kerman Harvest Festival - Opening Ceremonies Thursday, September 11, 7 p.m.; Parade 
Saturday, September 13, 10 a.m. 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
August 20, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City 
Attorney Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, 
Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:38 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
NF/BN 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Swearing-In of Dustin Lehman and EJ LaBerteaux as Full Time Officers, 
Introduction and Swearing-In of Reserve Officer Loren Dueck (JB) 

Performed 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL Robert Frausto 
Daniel Babshoff 
KUSD and John 
Fauside Gill Ranch 
 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll Report: July 20, 2014 - August 02, 2014 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, Avila E 
Street Lots (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01 subdividing a 1.0-acre parcel into four (4) 
residential lots, subject to conditions of approval. 

Approved except 
item C. DW/RD (3-
0-2) NF/BN 
 

 

 

 

 

Continued to next 
meeting for full 
quorum 
 
 
Res 14-49 

 

5



E. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
for Residential Water Meter Project (KM) 

Res 14-50 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for Residential Water Meter 
Project and authorize the City Manager to sign agreement. 

 

F. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending July 31, 2014 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Call for Resolution Requesting Action by Congress on Drought 
Legislation (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council consider by motion adopting a resolution 
requesting action by Congress on Drought Legislation as presented by the 
California Latino Water Coalition. 

Approved DW/RD 
(3-0-2) NF/BN 
 
Res 14-51 
 

B. SUBJECT: Report on Implementation of State Mandated Emergency Water 
Conservation Measures (KM) 

Informational only 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only.  

C. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution awarding the 
bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. in 
the amount of $95,492.40 and amend the project budget by adding 
$30,000 for a total estimated project cost of $111,000. 

Approved DW/RD 
(3-0-2) NF/BN 

Res 14-52 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council: 
 

1) By motion adopt resolution awarding the bid for the 2014 Concrete 
Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. in the amount of $181,607.00 
and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement; 
 
2) Approve a change order for the replacement of concrete curb and 
gutter and sidewalks on Middleton Avenue and 8th Street for an 
estimated cost of $58,000 and authorize the City Finance Director to 
increase the total budget for the Middleton Avenue and 8th Street 
Concrete Repairs to $65,000. 
 
 

 

Approved 1 & 2 
DW/RD (3-0-2) 
NF/BN 

Res 14-53 

 

6



E. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Donation and Sale of Surplus 
Equipment (PG) 

Approved DW/RD 
(3-0-2) NF/BN 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing the 
donation of 100 chairs and 14 tables to the Kerman Veterans of Foreign 
War (VFW), American Legion and American Legion Auxiliary for use at the 
new Westside Veterans Memorial Building and approve the sale and/or 
disposal of remaining equipment. 

Res 14-54 

F. SUBJECT: General Fund Reserve Policy (LP/TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council receives presentation and direct staff to 
prepare a resolution that establishes a policy regarding General Fund 
reserves. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. Grand Marshal Reception - Thursday, August 28, 5:30-7:30 P.M., United 
Health Center Multipurpose Room 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:06 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: Kerman Public Safety Employees Association. 

Instructions to 
negotiator  

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:14 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 8:15 p.m. 

 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 
 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 

written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 
 

         Date:  
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Kerman 

Public Safety Employees Association (KPSEA) 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving an amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with the Kerman 
Public Safety Employees Association and authorizes the City Manager to execute Amended MOU. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The City of Kerman and the Kerman Public Safety Employees Association (KPSEA) have reached an agreement on 
a new Memorandum of Understanding. This agreement concludes negotiations with all City employees. 
  
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  

The City of Kerman and Kerman Public Safety Employees Association (KPSE) have agreed to a new Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU). The MOU is for a three (3) year period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017 and 
includes a cost of living (COLA) adjustement of two percent in year one, one percent in year two and no COLA in 
year three. The new MOU also includes POST certification pay and minor changes to compensatory time accruals, 
holiday pay and sick leave policies. The terms and conditions of the MOU are attached to the resolution as Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The budget for fiscal year 2014-2015 will be amended to reflect the two percent cost of living adjustment effective 
July 1, 2014 along with other agreed upon changes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachment: 
 

A. Resolution Approving Amendment to MOU w/Exhibit 
  

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 4 
Resolution Approving Amendment to MOU with KPSEA 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH THE KERMAN PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEE 

ASSOCIATION (KPSEA) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman and the City of Kerman Public Safety Employee Association (KPSEA) are 
parties to a Memorandum of Understanding governing the terms, benefits, and working conditions of the members of 
the KPSEA, and said MOU expired on June 30, 2014 and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and KPSEA have agreed on terms and provisions of an amended MOU as set forth 
below. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Kerman does hereby find, resolve, 
and orders as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals of fact are true and correct and incorporated herein as if set forth fully as findings of 
fact. 

2. The KPSEA has approved and executed an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 
the City of Kerman attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’. 

3. The City Council of the City of Kerman hereby approves the Amendment to the MOU and authorizes the City 
Manager to sign the MOU on behalf of the City of Kerman. 

4. The City Manager and the Finance Director are authorized and directed to take all actions that may be 
necessary to complete or give effect to the actions authorized by this Resolution and the amended MOU. 

 
The foregoing Resolution was approved by the City Council of the City of Kerman at a regular meeting held on the 3rd 
day of September, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

The foregoing Resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Gary Yep 
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 4 
Resolution Approving Amendment to MOU with KPSEA 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2014 BETWEEN CITY OF KERMAN 

AND CITY OF KERMAN PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (KPSEA) 
 

 WHEREAS, the parties hereto have previously entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that was 
amended to be effective September 16, 2009 through June 30, 2011, and that MOU was then supplemented by an Exhibit A 
dated and signed by the representatives of the parties on January 31, 2011 and February 1, 2011 which extended the term of 
the MOU to be effective through June 30, 2012. The MOU was then further amended by a SUCCESSOR MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2012 BETWEEN CITY OF KERMAN AND PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES 
ASSOCIATION (KPSEA), executed on July 18 and 19, 2012, followed by an AMENDMENT TO MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2013 BETWEEN CITY OF KERMAN AND PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES 
ASSOCAITION (KPSEA), which amended the MOU and extended it to be effective to June 30, 2014. 
 

 WHEREAS, after extensive sessions to meet and confer, the City of Kerman and the City of Kerman PUBLIC SAFETY 
EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (KPSEA) have agreed to further modify the terms of the MOU as set forth below. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO AGREE THAT the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and the successive 
amendments to it as identified above shall be modified as follows: 
 

1. Duration of Agreement 
 

This agreement shall be effective for three years from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2017. 
 

2. Salaries 
 

Public safety employees shall receive a two percent (2%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2014, and shall 
receive a one percent (1%) cost of living adjustment effective July 1, 2015. 

 
3.  POST Certification Pay 

 
Public safety employees shall receive additional compensation for attaining POST certificates as follows: 
 

a. 2.5% for Intermediate POST Certificate. 
b. 2.5% pay for Advanced POST Certificate. 
c. The maximum additional compensation for POST certification is 5%. 

4. Compensatory Time 
 
Article VII, sub-paragraph F of the MOU shall be modified as follows: 
 
F. Compensatory Time: Compensatory time carried over from one fiscal year to the next shall not exceed 40 80 hours, 
but no more than 80 hours of compensatory time can be accrued at any time. Employees (including Sergeants) 
planning to use compensatory time will provide City with five (5) working days’ the written notice and said request will 
be approved if desired staffing levels are able to be maintained shall submit requests to the Chief of Police or 
supervising Sergeant within five (5) working days of intended use. The request will be approved if desired-staffing 
levels are able to be maintained. Employees with 40 80 hours of compensatory time on the books at the time of this 
agreement may not earn additional compensatory time. All circumstances which previously would have resulted in 
additional compensatory time will be compensated as overtime pursuant to this agreement. While an employee has 
credit for 80 hours of compensatory time on the books, no additional compensatory time may be accrued, and any 
overtime hours worked by the employee must be compensated at applicable overtime rates. 

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 4 
Resolution Approving Amendment to MOU with KPSEA 
  

 
5. Holiday Pay 

 
Employees working on a recognized holiday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1½) of their regular rate of 
pay. 
 

6. Sundays/Holidays 
 
Article VII, sub-paragraph E of the MOU shall be modified as follows: 
 
E. Sundays/Holidays: Saturday and/or Sunday shall not be considered overtime if the same falls within the regular 
work period of an employee. Employees whose regular work period does not include Sundays or a holiday and who 
are scheduled to work on Sundays or Holidays shall be given a seven (7) day advance notice. Call back overtime, or 
work schedules for which seven day’s advance notice of work on Sundays is given shall be compensated at double 
time (i.e., regular time plus holiday hours). 

7. Sick Leave 
 
Article 5.13, sub-paragraph 2 (iii) of the City of Kerman Personnel Policies and Procedures shall be revised as follows: 
 
If the employee is absent on sick leave for more than one (1) day the employee will keep the immediate supervisor 
informed as to the date the employee expects to return to work. Additionally, on the third (3rd) consecutive day absent, 
a doctor’s note is required may be required upon return to work. 

8. Personal Leave 
 
Article VII, sub-paragraph F of the MOU shall be modified by adding the following: 
 
Sergeants shall be entitled to two (2) days of additional personal leave, which leave shall be deducted from sick leave. 
Personal leave does not accumulate from year to year. 

9. Affirmation of all other Provisions 
 

The parties hereby affirm the continuing effectiveness and validity of all other terms and conditions set forth in the 
MOU as it has been amended to date, except as they may conflict with the above-stated amendment. 
 

10. Continuing Cooperation 
 

The parties acknowledge that the MOU referenced above has been subject to successive modifications, amendments 
and supplementation, and that it is desirable that the parties should cooperate to create a restated and updated 
Memorandum of Understanding. The parties pledge to make good faith efforts to create and execute such a 
restatement of the currently effective provisions of their Memorandum of Understanding. 
 

CITY OF KERMAN  KERMAN PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION 
  
        
Luis Patlan  Date  Ofc. James Nevis  Date  
City Manager President, KPSEA 
 

38



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

/AYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Application for CDBG Funds for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council takes the following action by one motion: 

1. Approve the submittal of an application for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for FY 
2015/16 for the installation of a pre-fabricated restroom building at Soroptimist Park; and 

2. Approve an amendment to the City’s FY 2014/15 General Fund Budget to include playground equipment at 
B Street Neighborhood Park in-lieu of the Soroptimist Park restroom building. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The City of Kerman intended to submit an application for CDBG funds for FY 2015/16 totaling $80,000 for the 
installation of playground equipment at the B Street Neighborhood Park. However, on July 1 of this year staff was 
advised by the County that this project was no longer eligible for CDBG funding due to a change in eligibility criteria 
enacted by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). As an alternative project, staff discussed 
with the County the possible use of CDBG funds to install an ADA compliant pre-fabricated restroom at Soroptimist 
Park. County staff reviewed this request and determined that the project is eligible because CDBG funds can be 
used to aid persons with disabilities regardless if the project falls within an eligible area. Should the Council agree to 
this change in project scope, staff also recommends that the Council apply the $45,000 budgeted in FY 2014/15 for 
the playground equipment at the B Street Neighborhood Park in lieu of restrooms at Soroptimist Park. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The County receives an annual allocation of CDBG funds in the amount of $130,000 from HUD and, through an 
agreement with local participating Cities, makes a portion of the CDBG funds available to each City. Projects for 
which CDBG funds can be used must benefit one of the following: 
 

1. Areas within the City with at least 51 percent low to moderate income households; 
2. Senior citizens; 
3. Persons with disabilities. 

39



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
FY 2015-2016 CDBG Application 
  
HUD utilizes the American Community Survey (ACS) to determine the percentage of low to moderate income 
households within Census Block Groups. The ACS is an ongoing survey conducted annually by the U.S. Census 
Bureau to aid communities, states governments, and federal programs in the distribution of funding. The ACS 
publishes a rolling 5-year average of income statistics that HUD utilizes in eligibility determinations. HUD has 
recently updated the areas eligible for CDBG funds based upon the ACS. The City was made aware of the revisions 
to the eligible areas in early July. The current eligible areas will remain in effect for 5 years. The eligible areas are 
shown on Exhibit A. 
 
In August 2013, the City Council was presented with two possible projects to be funded with the City’s FY 
2014/2015 CDBG fund allocation. The two projects were as follows: 
 

1. B Street Neighborhood Park: Install playground equipment and other improvements. 
2. Katie’s Kids Nature Park: Installation of a pre-fabricated restroom and other park amenities. 

  
Council directed Staff to apply for CDBG funding for Katie’s Kids Nature Park for FY 2014/2015 and for the B Street 
Neighborhood Park for FY 2015/2016. CDBG funds were applied for, and awarded, for Katie’s Kids Nature Park for 
FY 2014-2015. As a result of the revision to eligible areas, the B Street Neighborhood Park Project is no longer 
within an eligible area and cannot receive CDBG funding. 
 
Staff has discussed and reviewed alternative projects that could be funded with the City’s FY 2015/2016 CDBG fund 
allocation. The preferred alternative is the installation of a pre-fabricated restroom building at Soroptimist Park, 
including the installation of the necessary utilities to serve the building. This project is not located within an eligible 
area, but due to the park’s handicap accessible nature, the project would be eligible based on the fact that the 
handicap accessible restroom would directly benefit persons with disabilities. 
 
The restroom building is included in the City’s 14/15 General Fund Budget. Staff recommends that the installation of 
playground equipment at B Street Neighborhood Park be funded with the General Fund Reserves that were 
budgeted for Soroptimist Park. Essentially, both projects will be completed as planned, just with a switch of the 
funding sources. The following table summarizes the funding changes. 
 

Funding Source 
Current Proposed 

Soroptimist B Street Soroptimist B Street 
FY 15/16 CDBG Funds - $80,000 $80,000 - 
FY 14/15 General Fund $45,000* - - $45,000* 

* Additional work to be performed with Public Works crews. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The Soroptimist Park restroom project is currently included in the City’s FY 14/15 Budget in the amount of $45,000 
to be funded with General Fund Reserves. This budgeted amount does not include the costs associated with the 
use of Public Works crews to install the necessary utilities to the building. The total estimated cost of the project, 
including the necessary utilities, is $80,000. The City’s FY 2015/2016 CDBG funding allocation is $80,000. 
 
The $45,000 budgeted for Soroptimist Park will be used for the installation of playground equipment at B Street 
Neighborhood Park. The necessary site work at the park (i.e. concrete sidewalk, benches, drinking fountain, etc.) 
will need to be installed by Public Works crews, as was the case with the utilities at Soroptimist Park. The estimated 
cost of these improvements, if performed by a Contractor, is $20,000. The following table summarizes the funding 
changes. 
  

40



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
FY 2015-2016 CDBG Application 
  
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
After submittal of the application to the County and receipt of approval of the project, the City will be required to 
conduct a Public Hearing. The Public Hearing is currently scheduled for September 17, 2014. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Eligibility Area Map 
 

41



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
FY 2015-2016 CDBG Application 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

 

42


	Agenda
	Minutes
	August 20, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding with the Kerman Public Safety Employees Association (KPSEA)
	Staff Report - KPSEA MOU - September 2014

	Application for CDBG Funds for Fiscal Year 2015/2016
	Staff Report - FY 15-16 CDBG Application


